
 
MINUTES 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 19, 2007 

 
 
The City of Bradenton Planning Commission met on Monday, November 19, 2007 at 2:00 p.m. in 
the City Hall Auditorium. 
     
UUATTENDANCEU  
 
  Planning Commission Members  (Shaded area indicates absence, 
  *Indicates non-voting): 
 

 

 
 
City Staff:  
 

Development 
Services 

Chairman 
Diane Barcus 

Richard Barnhill Carlos         
Escalante 

 

Vice-Chair 
Lucienne 
Gaufillet 

 

Planning Commission Meeting – November 19, 2007 
 

1

Public Works Fire  
 

Police 

Director 
Tim Polk 

Arlan Cummings Kenny Langston  

Assistant Director 
Tom Cookingham 

     

Dev. Review Mgr.
Ruth Seewer 

    

 Review Coordinator 
Susan Kahl 

   

 
UUPRELIMINARIES  
 
Meeting called to order by Chairman Diane Barcus at 2:00 p.m.  
  

1) The Chair advised that with the exception of variance requests all items being considered 
at this meeting would be heard by City Council at its regularly scheduled meeting on 
Wednesday, December 12, 2007 at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise announced. 

2) Pledge of Allegiance at 2:01 p.m. 
3) Mr. Barnhill moved, with a second by Mr. Thompson, to approve the Minutes of October 

17, 2007.  Motion carried unanimously. 
4) Ms. Kahl swore in all those wishing to speak before the Commission. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

Allen Yearick 
  
 

Allen Prewitt  
 

Alternate 
Brady Cohenour 

Alternate  
O.M. Griffith 

 

Alternate Joseph 
Thompson 



Planning Commission Meeting – November 19, 2007 
 

2

PR.07.0035 WARD 4 NEIGHBORHOOD 20.04 RS 
Request of Craig Ward of GulfCoast Survey, agent for Property Investment LLC, owner, for 
approval of a Planned Development Project (PDP) for a 100 unit riverfront residential development 
with a community clubhouse and pool for property located at 3700 SR 64 East (Zoned PDP) 
 
Ms. Seewer read the request.  
 
Scott Haugland, representing Bradenton Property Investment, LLC, owner, presented the request 
advising that the proposed structures will be angled so that the River Isles residents could still see 
the waterfront.  He advised that in addition a pathway and a gazebo on the water was being 
constructed for the adjacent River Isles community.   
 
Craig Ward, professional land surveyor, GulfCoast Survey Associates, agent, answered questions 
of the Commission. 
 
Public Hearing:
The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and the following 
appeared:   
 
Don Bingham, secretary of the River Isles Home Owners Association, commented that Mr. 
Haugland and Mr. Ward were very cooperative with the residents.  He advised that they took the 
residents to St. Petersburg to see their sister project, they met with homeowners adjacent to the 
property several times, and they have been satisfied with everything that has been done.  Mr. 
Bingham stated that the River Isles community was not taking a position, but felt that the project 
would be very worthwhile and would be an improvement for the River Isles community. 
 
Ed Ethridge, 3604 Joyce Drive, advised that he and his wife’s home was the closest to the project.  
He said after having lived there for 16 years with hoboes, drinking parties, and two dead bodies 
found in those woods, he supported the project. 
 
Sharon Ethridge, 3604 Joyce Drive, said she was also speaking for neighbors, Mr. and Mrs. 
Kennedy, and she also had a letter from Evelyn Siegel, all of whom approved of the project.  She 
remarked that they were very pleased with this company’s attention to detail.  Mrs. Ethridge stated 
that they have been shown true respect by the developers and adjustments to the plans have been 
made in their favor.  She cited as an example that the proposed air conditioner was originally close 
to their home, and it was moved to the opposite end so that they would not hear the noise. 
 
The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Public Works - 
Mr. Cummings stated that he had no objections. 
  
Fire Department - 
Fire Marshal Langston stated that he had no objections.  
 
Staff Report- 
Ms. Seewer stated that staff recommended approval with the following stipulations: 
 

1. If any species listed in Rule 39-27.003 through 39.27-005 of the Florida Administrative 
Code are observed frequenting the site for nesting or breeding purposes, appropriate 
mitigation and/or protection measures will be taken, with immediate notification provided to 
the PCD. 



Planning Commission Meeting – November 19, 2007 
 

3

2. The architectural design and features of the proposed buildings shall be consistent with the 
conceptual rendering submitted and identified as City of Bradenton Exhibit F, or otherwise 
approved by the Planning and Community Development Director prior to construction. 

3. All structures will have a 4-sided design subject to approval of the Planning and Community 
Development Director.  

4. Provide sidewalks to the entrance gate and as determined to be necessary on SR 64 for 
resident access to the neighborhood commercial component on the north side (Carlton 
Arms Plaza). 

5. Concerns of Public Works and Fire Department regarding trash pick-up and cul-de-sac 
widths, respectively, will be addressed on the site improvement construction plans. 

6. During site and building construction adequate noise attenuation will be provided by the 
developer for the protection of adjacent residential properties to the east. 

7. Any deviation from the approved requirements, as determined by the Planning and 
Community Development Director, may require a PDP amendment. 

8. Prior to final PDP approval, provide a landscape plan indicating understory, hedge and 
groundcover plantings along the SR 64 property line. 

9. Prior to final PDP approval, the developer must formalize the Hurricane Evacuation analysis 
into a workable evacuation plan. The submitted hurricane evacuation plan shall be provided 
to each dwelling unit occupant, and incorporated by reference into the Homeowners 
Association documents. 

10. The Final PDP must address all stipulations and other staff/DRC recommendations and 
concerns included in this report as determined by the Planning and Community 
Development Director. 

 
The Chair asked whether there were any docks associated with this plan. 
 
Mr. Ward responded not with this approval. 
 
Mr. Haugland explained that the dock showing on the plans was one that already existed. 
 
Ms. Barnhill moved, with a second by Mr. Thompson, to approve PR.07.0035 with the following ten 
stipulations: 
 

1. If any species listed in Rule 39-27.003 through 39.27-005 of the Florida Administrative 
Code are observed frequenting the site for nesting or breeding purposes, appropriate 
mitigation and/or protection measures will be taken, with immediate notification provided to 
the PCD. 

2. The architectural design and features of the proposed buildings shall be consistent with the 
conceptual rendering submitted and identified as City of Bradenton Exhibit F, or otherwise 
approved by the Planning and Community Development Director prior to construction. 

3. All structures will have a 4-sided design subject to approval of the Planning and Community 
Development Director.  

4. Provide sidewalks to the entrance gate and as determined to be necessary on SR 64 for 
resident access to the neighborhood commercial component on the north side (Carlton 
Arms Plaza). 

5. Concerns of Public Works and Fire Department regarding trash pick-up and cul-de-sac 
widths, respectively, will be addressed on the site improvement construction plans. 

6. During site and building construction adequate noise attenuation will be provided by the 
developer for the protection of adjacent residential properties to the east. 

7. Any deviation from the approved requirements, as determined by the Planning and 
Community Development Director, may require a PDP amendment. 

8. Prior to final PDP approval, provide a landscape plan indicating understory, hedge and 
groundcover plantings along the SR 64 property line. 



Planning Commission Meeting – November 19, 2007 
 

4

9. Prior to final PDP approval, the developer must formalize the Hurricane Evacuation analysis 
into a workable evacuation plan. The submitted hurricane evacuation plan shall be provided 
to each dwelling unit occupant, and incorporated by reference into the Homeowners 
Association documents. 

10. The Final PDP must address all stipulations and other staff/DRC recommendations and 
concerns included in this report as determined by the Planning and Community 
Development Director. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The Chair commended the developers for working with the residents.  Ms. Gaufillet concurred. 
 
SU.07.0043 WARD 5 NEIGHBORHOOD 1.03/1.04 RS 
Request of Yumicsey Hernandez, d/b/a West Coast Seafood, Inc., owners, for Special Use 
approval for a grocery store for property located at 2201 14th Street West in the Bantam Shopping 
Center (Zoned C-3) 
 
Ms. Seewer read the request.  
 
Ms. Hernandez presented the request.   
 
Public Hearing:
The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and no one appeared.  
The Chair then opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair stated that she would hold open the Public Hearing pending discussion. 
 
Ms. Seewer pointed out that staff has had difficulty receiving the necessary information for this 
grocery store and although there was no specific objection to it, staff was unable to make a positive 
recommendation until certain information was received with regard to the dumpster location, the 
loading zones, necessity of a grease trap, and the plumbing inspector had a few issues with the 
plumbing that existed and/or proposed.  Ms. Seewer stated that only one copy of the floor plan was 
sent in on November 9.  She advised that a call had to be made for additional copies which just 
arrived.  She said the Fire and Public Works Departments had not had a chance to review them.  
She commented that disapproval was recommended but if the information was received in a timely 
manner, the Public Hearing could be continued until December.  Ms. Seewer listed stipulations 
which should be enforced if the Planning Commission recommended approval. 
 
Ms. Gaufillet commented that pieces of information and review were lacking; however, she 
suggested that the Commission allow Ms. Hernandez to move forward to City Council with a 
stipulation that the outstanding information needed to be resolved prior to being heard and then 
City Council could make the choice to continue or deny. 
 
Ms. Seewer expressed concern whether the issues could be resolved by the December 12 City 
Council meeting. 
 
Ms. Gaufillet agreed that if the pace had not been set so far, then Ms. Seewer was probably right 
that it would not likely dramatically change between now and December 12. 
 
The Chair said she had some serious questions about the plans with respect to the dumpster and 
access for deliveries because that area was fenced off and the dumpsters faced on 13th.  

 

Ms. Seewer advised that the plans showed the existing dumpster.  She said what staff was trying 
to do was determine the need for a second dumpster closer to the location of the storefront.   Ms.  



Planning Commission Meeting – November 19, 2007 
 

5

Seewer remarked that staff was not certain what was going in the store.  She expressed concern 
that Ms. Hernandez spoke about a meat saw and the floor plan which was received did not show a 
meat saw.  Ms. Seewer remarked that that was one of the things which needed to be straightened 
out before staff could determine what was needed. 
 
Public Works - 
Mr. Cummings stated that the dumpster was presently in the rear of the building and served the 
entire site.  He remarked that if food service went in, a second dumpster would be required.  He 
commented that there probably was not another location where the dumpster would be feasible 
without it sitting in the middle of the parking lot which nobody would want.  Mr. Cummings said he 
asked the Plumbing Inspector if the refuse from this site could be double bagged which would be 
acceptable instead of having a grease trap.  He commented that the owner just came forward 
stating that she wanted to do meat cutting inside, not just frozen foods, which would require flood 
drains and meat traps to keep from messing up the sewers.  Mr. Cummings stated that Ms. 
Hernandez needed to sit down with staff and work out those items.  He added he was not sure 
whether this was a Code related item, and if so, she would be required to do that anyway through 
the Code even though it was not shown on the plan.  Mr. Cummings commented that the biggest 
issue was that the second dumpster was needed in the rear of the store; although double bagging  
would be acceptable. 
 
Ms. Gaufillet asked about loading zones. 
 
Mr. Cummings remarked that there were certain issues, such as, not having deliveries made at 
night when no one was there.  He said the problem with this store was that there was not a horse-
shoe, circular drive.  He noted all the parking was in front of the stores so there was no place to 
have deliveries.  He explained that if a semi came in at 11 a.m., it would be in the middle of the 
parking lot delivering food and beverages.  Mr. Cummings commented that an area should be set 
aside for a loading area or zone. 
 
Ms. Gaufillet asked whether the City would allow for some of the parking spaces to serve dual use 
so that for a portion of a time, the allotted space could be a loading zone and deliveries could be 
made at specific times. 
 
Mr. Cummings concurred that there was a lot of parking for this facility and a few vacant stores.  
He said he did not know how the ratio worked out, but some center aisle parking by the sign for 
deliveries would probably work.  Mr. Cummings stated that using a meat saw changed the 
parameters than having just frozen food sales. 
 
Mr. Barnhill asked the applicant whether she understood what the City was requiring before final 
approval could be given on the site plan. 
 
Ms. Hernandez responded in the affirmative. 
 
Mr. Barnhill asked why she had not provided the information. 
 
Ms. Hernandez commented that she was trying to understand what the City wanted. 
 
Mr. Barnhill remarked that there were too many unanswered questions for him to make a decision 
today so he would have to recommend continuation. 
 
Ms. Seewer suggested that Ms. Hernandez meet with staff at the November 28 DRC meeting and 
review each item to determine what had to be done to move this application forward.  
 



Planning Commission Meeting – November 19, 2007 
 

6

The Chair stated that it might be a good idea for Ms. Hernandez to bring her drafting and design 
service with her. 
 
Ms. Hernandez answered that that would be fine. 
 
Ms. Gaufillet moved, with a second by Mr.  Barnhill, to continue SU.07.0043 until the December 19 
Planning Commission Meeting.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
SU.07.0045 WARD 4 NEIGHBORHOOD 7.02B RS 
Request of Ken McKeithen, Sun Bay Properties, Inc., agent for John M. Huston, owner, for Special 
Use approval for a dry cleaning plant for property located at 2402 Manatee Avenue East in the Sun 
Bay Shopping Plaza (Zoned C-3) 
 
Ms. Seewer read the request.  She advised that Mr. McKeithen could not be present, but he had 
authorized John Hutson to speak on his behalf.  
 
Mr. Hutson presented the request.   
 
Public Hearing:
The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and no one appeared.  
The Chair then opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Public Works - 
Mr. Cummings stated that he had no objections. 
  
Fire Department - 
Fire Marshal Langston stated that he had no objections. 
  
Staff Report- 
Ms. Seewer stated that staff recommended approval with the following stipulations: 
 

1. All equipment installation and set up within the subject storefront will be 
done by licensed contractors. 

2. Applicants must comply with all State Regulatory Departments’ Regulations  
pertaining to Dry Cleaning Establishments. 

 
Mr. Thompson moved, with a second by Mr. Barnhill, to SU.07.0045 with the following stipulations: 
 

1. All equipment installation and set up within the subject storefront will be 
done by licensed contractors. 

2. Applicants must comply with all State Regulatory Departments’ Regulations  
pertaining to Dry Cleaning Establishments. 

 
 Motion carried unanimously. 
 
SU.07.0046 WARD 5 NEIGHBORHOOD 1.03/1.04 RS 
Request of Professional Engineering & Design, agent for Kevin Rich, d/b/a Burke’s Auto Body, 
owner, for Special Use approval for automotive repair for property located at 2011 9th Street West  
(Zoned C-3) 
 
Ms. Seewer read the request.  
 



Planning Commission Meeting – November 19, 2007 
 

7

Joyce Poelsma of Professional Engineering & Design presented the request.   
 
Public Hearing:
The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and the following 
appeared: 
 
Jim Burke said he had been the previous owner of Burke’s Auto Body on 9th Street for 28 years.  
He stated that location had been Harmon’s Glass and was already set up as an automobile repair 
place so he had no objection and felt it would be a nice addition to 9th Street.   
 
The Chair then opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Public Works - 
Mr. Cummings stated that he had no objections. 
  
Fire Department - 
Fire Marshal Langston stated that he had no objections.   
 
Staff Report- 
Ms. Seewer stated that staff recommended approval with the following stipulations: 
 

1. Outside storage of automotive parts is prohibited. 
2. Provide an opaque buffer on the east side by additional landscape materials, such 

as, hedges and vines or slats in the chain link. 
3. No work will be performed outside the perimeter of the building and carport. 
 

Mr. Thompson moved, with a second by Mr. Barnhill, to SU.07.0046 with the following three 
stipulations: 
 

1. Outside storage of automotive parts is prohibited. 
2. Provide an opaque buffer on the east side by additional landscape materials, such 

as, hedges and vines or slats in the chain link. 
3. No work will be performed outside the perimeter of the building and carport. 

 
 Motion carried unanimously. 
 
SU.07.0047 WARD 5 NEIGHBORHOOD 1.03/1.04 RS 
Request of Johnny C. & Daphney S. Barnes, owners, for Special Use approval to operate an 
Activity Center for property located at 628 9th Avenue West  (Zoned C-1/UCBD) 
 
Ms. Seewer read the request stating that it was advertised as 628 and the actual storefront was 
626.  She said she had checked with the City Attorney who advised that since it was in a strip 
shopping center with a series of addresses that go as far as 630, there was no problem but the 
address would be corrected for City Council.  
 
Ms. Kahl swore in Mr. and Mrs. Barnes.  
 
Mr. and Mrs. Barnes appeared to present the request and answered questions of the Commission 
Members.  Mr. Barnes noted that with the daylight savings time change they would be in operation 
from 9 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. rather than from 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.  
 
Public Hearing:



Planning Commission Meeting – November 19, 2007 
 

8

The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and no one appeared.  
The Chair then opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Public Works - 
Mr. Cummings stated that he had no comments. 
  
Fire Department - 
Fire Marshal Langston stated that he had no objections. 
   
Staff Report- 
Ms. Seewer advised that staff has had several meetings with Mr. and Mrs. Barnes who were very 
committed to the community.  She commented that it would be a safe business for the community 
and staff had no objections to this use provided the property was properly monitored and the house 
of operation were strictly adhered to.  She said that staff recommended approval with the following 
stipulations: 
 

1. Hours of operation are 9:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday, 
closed on Sunday. 

 2. Exterior and interior video cameras will be installed and properly maintained. 
 
Ms. Gaufillet moved, with a second by Mr. Barnhill, to SU.07.0047 with the following two 
stipulations: 
 

1.       Hours of operation are 9:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday, 
closed on Sunday. 

 2. Exterior and interior video cameras will be installed and properly maintained. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Polk commented that based on the Barnes’ testimony and their passion he felt they would do a 
very fine job.   
 
MA.07.0018 WARD 1 NEIGHBORHOOD 4.07 RS 
Request of ZNS Engineering, agent for Promenade Associates, owner, for approval of a Planned 
Development Major Amendment application for an out-parcel addition for a restaurant for property 
located at 6701 Manatee Avenue West in the Promenade Shopping Center (Zoned PDP) 
 
Ms. Seewer read the request. 
 
Tom McCollum of ZNS Engineering, L.C., presented the site plan for a restaurant, probably Ruby 
Tuesday’s, in the Northwest Promenade Shopping Center.   
 
Public Hearing: 
The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and no one appeared.  
The Chair then opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Public Works - 
Mr. Cummings stated that this was a good site for this restaurant.  He noted some small tweaking 
would have to be done regarding the dumpster and its location for front service capability.  Mr. 
Cummings pointed out that because the dumpster would be up against the building, it would have 
to be sprinkled. 



Planning Commission Meeting – November 19, 2007 
 

9

  
Fire Department - 
Fire Marshal Langston stated that he had no objections.  He remarked that he met with the 
developers and recommended that the building be sprinkled because of the new Code which 
would be coming out. 
 
Staff Report- 
Ms. Seewer stated that staff recommended approval of MA.07.0018 based on the Findings of Fact 
and Analysis of the proposed Atlas Amendment and pursuant to the General Standards and 
Regulations requirements of Section 404.A of the Land Use and Development Regulations with the 
following stipulations: 
 

1. All comments received by Public Works and the Fire Department representatives identified 
in this report will be addressed with the Site Improvement permit. 

2. Any dead or missing landscape materials will be replaced with Florida Grade 1 materials of 
a comparable size. 

3. Trees intended for removal will be relocated on site or replaced. 
4. All trees within close proximity of the proposed construction area will be properly 

barricaded. 
 
Ms. Gaufillet suggested that stipulation #2 include that the landscaping be done prior to the 
Certificate of Occupancy. 
 
Mr. Barnhill moved, with a second by Mr. Thompson, to recommend approval of MA.07.0018 with 
amended  stipulations as follows: 
 

1. All comments received by Public Works and the Fire Department representatives identified 
in this report will be addressed with the Site Improvement permit. 

2. Any dead or missing landscape materials will be replaced with Florida Grade 1 materials of 
a comparable size prior to Certificate of Occupancy. 

3. Trees intended for removal will be relocated on site or replaced. 
4. All trees within close proximity of the proposed construction area will be properly 

barricaded. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CP.07.0022 WARD 1 NEIGHBORHOOD 12.02 RS 
Request of Mark P. Barnebey, Esquire, agent for C&L Patrick, LLC, owner, for a Small Scale 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use designation from County ROR, 
Res-6 to City Commercial for property located at 5300 Manatee Avenue West 
 
LU.07.0040 WARD 1 NEIGHBORHOOD 12.02 RS 
Request of Mark P. Barnebey, Esquire, agent for C&L Patrick, LLC, owner, to change the Future 
Land Use Atlas designation from County GC, RSF-4-5 to City C-2 for property located at 5300 
Manatee Avenue West 
 
Ms. Seewer read the two requests together stating that they pertained to the same property 
although she noted that separate action would be needed for both applications. 
 
Scott Russo, Esquire for Kirk Pinkerton, representing C&L Patrick, LLC, owner, presented the 
requests and answered questions of the Planning Commission Members. 
 
Public Hearing: 



Planning Commission Meeting – November 19, 2007 
 

10

The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and no one appeared.  
The Chair then opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Ms. Seewer advised that staff recommended approval of each request. 
 
Mr. Thompson moved, with a second by Ms. Gaufillet, to approve CP.07.0022 based on the 
Findings of Fact and Analysis of the proposed Comprehensive Plan FLUM Amendment.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Thompson moved, with a second by Ms. Gaufillet, to approve LU.07.0040 based on the 
Findings of Fact and Analysis of the proposed Land Use Atlas Amendment.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Adjournment 
Ms. Gaufillet moved, with a second by Mr. Thompson, to adjourn the meeting at 3:42 p.m.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Diane Barcus 
Chairman 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 286.0105, IF ANY PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD, 
COUNCIL, AGENCY OR COMMISSION AT THIS MEETING, SUCH PERSON WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND 
FOR SUCH PURPOSE, MAY NEED TO WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 
 

Note:  This is not a verbatim record.  A recorded CD is available upon request for a $10.00 service charge. 


	Diane Barcus
	Richard Barnhill

